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67-69 East 79th Street Building (Oeorge Rives Residencel,
Borough of Manhattan,
Bull+ 1007-08; Architects Carrdre & Hastings.

Landmark Site: Borough of Manhattan Tax Map Block 1491, Lot 22.
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On June 192, 1879, the Landmarks Preservaticn Comm
a public hearing on the proposed designation as a
67-69 East 79th Street Buiiding and The proposec d
The related Landmark Site (ltem No. 245. The heari
duly advertised in accordance wlih The provtsusns o
witnesses spoke in favor of designation. qure we
opposition to designation. Representatives of fhe freek
government have informed the Commission thav tt ey obpose This
deisgnation.
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DESCRIPTION AMD ANALYSIS

This imposing resldence designed by Carrere & H
late French Baroque style was buiit between 12907 andg
George and Sarah Rives, Tihe building is represen
iarge town houses erected on the Upper Cast Sid
the early 20th century as this area beczme the
residential quarter of the city,.
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The Uoper East Sicde of Manhattan tegan 1o be developed 2s a
residential neighborhcod in the 1860s when simplie brownstone
rowhouses were constructed in the area. These ncres weire bui
on speculation and sold to middle-class families. Unti! ths

last years of +the 19th century the Upper Eas de remainad a
stable middle-class community. Most of the city's wealthiest
families still lived beloy 52+h Street, Zut 2s commercia! activit
expandad in That area the elite femilies moved fariher north.
During the twerty-{ive year paricd berwean about 1890 and the
beginning of World War | opulent town houses replaced the older
brownstone resicences. Crand mansions were bulit on Fifth Avenue
and stylish new Town hcuszes appearec =n the sicde strests east of
the Avenue. Many of the oid hcuses were demoliched to mzke way
for new dwellings,while cthers had their crigianl fﬂcadﬁs repiaced
by styllsh new fronts. The George Rives residencs Is Typical of
the town houses constructed during this pericd of lnTens.ve
redevelopment. Three ear)ier brownstone houses, built c. 1877,
stood on the sife. These were rurchased by The Rives in 1905,

and the architectural firm of Carrére & Hastings replaced then
with a single large residence.
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By 1906 Carrere & Hastings was one of Mew York's most
prestiglous architectural firms, The partnership was founded
in 1885 by John M, Carrere (1858~1911) and Thomas Hastings
(1860~1929) who had met while studying at the Ecole des Beaux~
Arts in Paris. Both architects trained In the offices of McKim
Mead ‘& White prior to the formation of their partnership. The
flrm's earliest buildings were commissioned by Flerida developer
Henry M. Flaglier and include the Ponce de Leon Hotel and Fiagler's
own residence. By the 1890s Carrére & Hastings had estab!lished
+hemsalves as one of the most prominent New York firms active
in the design of town houses and country residences for the wealthy,
It was, howsver, their successful competition enfry for the Mew
York Public Library of 18%7 that brought them national prominence.
Most of Carrere & Hastings' residential designs, such as the
Rives town house, reflect the influence of their French training,
The firm favored designs with neo-French Ciassic and French Beaux-
Arts decorative motifs, aithough cccasionally English design
elements also appear in their work,

George lockhart Rives (1849-13917) was a prominant New York
Clty lawyer, hlstorian, and staftesman. Rivas was educated at
Columbia College, at Trinity College, Cambridge, and at Columbia
Law Schoo!l and was admitted to the bar in 1874, In 1876 he
formed *the law partnership of Olin & Rives with Stephen H. Olin,
From 1887 until 1889 Rives served as Assistant Secretary of State
under Grover Cleveland. He was very active in New York City
civic affairs, serving as a member of the Rapid Trans!T Commissicn
(1856-1902), president of the Commission to ravise the charter of
Greater New York (1900}, corporation counsel of the city (1902-
1904), 2 trustee of Columbia University (1882-1903, chairman
of the board 1903-1916), a trustee of the Astor Library (1883~
1888), of the Lenox Library (1893-1895), and cf The New York
Public Library (1895-13914, president of the board 1914-1917),
president of the Board of Governors of New York Hospital, and a
director of the Metropolitan Cpera House. Rives also wrote a
number of books including a two-volume histery of United Ststes -
Mexican relations oricr fto the Mexican War (The United States
and Mexico, 1821-3244). In 1889 Rives married sociallite Sara
Whiting Belmonrt (c. 1924} who had divorced her first husband,
Oliver H, P. Belmeny, in 1382, She was Rives' second wife;
his firet wife Caroline Morrls Kean died in 1887.

In 1926 the Rives estate sold the house tc Robert Livingston
Gerry (1877-1957) and his wife Cornelia Harriman Gerry (1884~
1966). Rovert Livingston Cerry was a prominent New York real estate
broker, sportsman, and conservationist. Gerry was a descendent of
Eidridge Gerry, a signer of the Declaration of Indepandence and



and vice-president of the Unlied States under James Madison and
he was the son of Commedore Eldridce T. Gerry whose mansicn was
located at the scutheast corner of Fifth Avenue and E£ast 61st
Streef. In 1910, after his father retired, Gerry bascame the
head of the real estate firm of Gerry Offices (later Gerry Estataes),
He sat on the becard of a number of New York City banks and was
a director of two raiircad companies, Gerry also maintained a
private game preserve that was devoted o research in game
conservation. Gerry's wife, Correlia Harriman Gerry, was the
daughter of financier E.H. Harriman and the sister of Governor
W. Avereil Harriman. In 1958 The house was soid to the Kingdom
of Greece,

As dasigned by Carrere & Hasting, the Rives Residence was
mode!ed after the town houses that |ine +he Place Venddme in
Paris, designed in 1698 by Jules Hardouin=Mansart. Tha houses
on the Place Venddme are moreornate +han the Rives Resldence, but
all are similarly massed and use a similar design vocabulary.

As originaily built, the Ceorge Rives Resldence was a flve-
story building with simple restrained corramentation. The smooth
ground floor was articulated by three round-arched, ground-flcor
openings. This arrangement of the aqround-floor openings remains
a@s cesigned and is based very closely on the example cf the Place
Verddme. The arch to the right serves as the maln entrance and
originally led tc a vestibule, while the subsidiary entrance
to the left led to the basement servants' area. Both of these
entrances are screened by ornate iron gates, In the center is a
multi-paned window set on top of a balustrade.

The second and third floors are treated as a single unit with
Reman Doric pilasters that support a full entablature with ornste
roldings and a deep bracketed cornice. This mot!f Is also takan
directly from the facades on the Paiace Venddme, The second
floor serves as the plano notile with threa floor-length, doudble-
hung windows set wlthin fui! enframements that are crowned by
pediments, These windows originaliy cpered onto the !ibrary that
extended along the entire front of th= housa. Eared enframemenis
surround the third floor openings. With The exception of addad
rustication cn the ground floor tne three bottom stories of the
house remain substantially as buiit.

In 1962 Greek architect Piorre Zarnettos eniarged *he buiiding
into a six=story structure, and the *wo upper floors of the Rivas
Residzrce were Totally, but sympathetically, altered. The criginai
fourth floor was composed of Threc openings wlth eared enframaments
flenked by vertical paneis ornamented with neo-Zlassical! decorative
motlifz, These panels sunnorted a modest cornice and a balustrade
that ran in front cf a2 copper mansard ioof piercsd by four shed
dormers, The mansard was removecd during the 1682 aiteraticn. The
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vaertical panzls on The fourtn flocr were extendsd ong flcer, but
their neo~Classica!l ornamartation was: removed, The oriaina!

baluztiade or & repiica of it was plazed above the naw fiflh flcor,

This hatustrade rups in fronv of the new sixth floor wnich i3
crowned by anp identical balustrade. All of the new windows were
given sared enframements modeled after those of The original
fourth flocr. On the ground ficor Zannetfcs alsc added the
rusticavion, iron gates, famps, and Tlag staffs. Thaese costly
zlterations were carried out in 2 sympathetic wenner reflacting
the great regerd *hat the Greek government has for this building,
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FINDINGS AND DZSIGNATIONS

On tha basls of a careful consideraticn of The hlstory, the
architecture and othar featurss of fthis btullding, the Landmarks
Preservation Commission flinds that the 67~62 East 79th Street
Bullding has a speclal character, speclal hlsiorical and
assthetic Interest and value as part of the dovelopment,
heritage and cultural characteristics of New York City,

The Commisslion further ftinds that, amecng lt+s important
qual lties, the 67-69 East 79th Street Bullding is an Impesing
neo-Frﬂnc” Baroque style rasidence modeled attar the Palace
Venddme In Parls, that was des! lgned tv Carrere & Hastlings,
cne of the counfry s leading architvectura! firms at the Turn
of the century; that It was assoclatad with soclally preminent
New Yorkers Ipcluding Cacrae Lockhart Rives, Robert Livingsicn
Gerry, and Cernella Harriman Cerry! That it was altered In
1952 for the Gireak ‘governmsnt in a manner that complaments the
ocriginal design; that it Is a reminder of an Impertant perlod in
New York City's history and 3 way of life that has laryely
disappaared; and that 1t is an important part of a group of
four contemporary town houses,

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Chaptar 21 (formerly
Chapter 63) of the Charter of the Citv cf Naw York and Chapter &-A
of tha Administrativa Coce of the City of New York, th2 Land.arks
Preservation Commisssicn cdesignates as a Landmark +the 67-6%

East 73th Street Bullding, Borough of Manhaltan and designates

Tax Map Block 1491, Lot 24, Borough of Manhattan, as 1ts lLandmark
Site.
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